
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE  
ROWAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

March 19, 2007 – 5:30 PM 
J. NEWTON COHEN, SR. ROOM, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

 
Present:  Arnold S. Chamberlain, Chairman 

Chad Mitchell, Vice-Chairman 
Jon Barber, Member 
Tina Hall, Member 
Jim Sides, Member  

 
County Manager William Cowan, Clerk to the Board Carolyn Athey, County 
Attorney Jay Dees and Finance Director Leslie Heidrick were present. 

 
Chairman Chamberlain convened the meeting at 5:30 pm. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell provided the Invocation and Boy Scout Troop #443 from 
St. John’s Lutheran Church led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
Commissioner Mitchell moved, Commissioner Barber seconded, and the vote to 
approve the minutes of the February 19, 2007 and March 12, 2007 Commission 
Meetings passed unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
Chairman Chamberlain moved to add a discussion regarding Public Comment 
Period for future meetings.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sides 
and passed unanimously. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain added the discussion as agenda item #2a.  
 
CONSIDER DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
Commissioner Sides moved to pull item K from the Consent Agenda for 
consideration at a future date.  Commissioner Hall seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
  
 



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Commissioner Mitchell moved for approval of the agenda.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Sides and passed unanimously. 
 
1.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
Commissioner Sides moved for approval of the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner 
Mitchell seconded and the motion carried unanimously.  (On a motion by 
Commissioner Sides as stated earlier, Item K was pulled from the agenda). 
 
The Consent Agenda consisted of the following items: 
 

A. Application for Continuation of Implementation Funding for the Criminal 
Justice Partnership Program for Fiscal Year 2007-08 

B. Set Public Hearing for April 2, 2007 for Unanimous Petition for Alex Road 
C. Set Public Hearing for April 2, 2007 for Unanimous Petition for Corriher 

Farm Road 
D. Set Public Hearing for April 2, 2007 for Unanimous Petition for Powell 

Farm Road 
E. Set Public Hearing for April 2, 2007 for Unanimous Petition for Viola Lane 
F. Set Public Hearing for April 2, 2007 for Z 20-04 and CUP 16-04 to 

Consider Request from Applicant Aaron Martin 
G. Set Public Hearing for April 2, 2007 for CUP-03-07 to Consider Request 

from Applicant Mark Brown 
H. Approval to Delay Discussion for Proposed Policy Regarding Access to 

Private Property 
I. Approval to Delay Public Hearing for Proposed Changes to Adult Use Text  
J. Approval to Transfer Gift Funds in Memory of Eddie Post to the Rowan 

Public Library Foundation 
K. Approval of Rowan Museum Lease Amendment Approved December 5, 

2005 by Rowan County Board of Commissioners  
L. Approval for Rowan Public Library to Sell Withdrawn Materials at Annual 

Book Sale                               
M. Approval for Senior Services Department to Submit Project Application to 

Robertson Family Foundation for The SAFE Project 
N. Approval for the Department of Social Services to Submit a Grant 

Application to Robertson Family Foundation for Development of a 
Parenting Video 

O. Approval of Proclamation Declaring April 8-14, 2007 Public Safety 
Telecommunicators Week 

P. Approval of Proclamation Declaring April as Child Abuse Prevention 
Month  

 
 
 

 2



2.  PRESENTATION FROM THE NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AND RECOGNITION OF RETIRING LIBRARY 
SERVICES DIRECTOR PHILLIP BARTON  
Ed Wooters, Director of Member Services from the North Carolina Association of 
County Commissioners (NCACC), reported that a series of video recordings 
based on county history had earned Rowan County a statewide award from the 
NCACC.  Mr. Wooters said the Ramble Through Rowan documentary was 
selected as one of (9) county programs from across the state to win the 2006 
Outstanding County Program Award.  The purpose of the awards program is to 
highlight some of the outstanding work that is going on in North Carolina counties 
and to bring attention to programs that other counties might want to emulate.   
 
Library Staff member Gretchen Witt was present on behalf of Rowan Public 
Library, and on behalf of Jeff Hall who had led the program.  Mr. Hall was out of 
town and unable to attend the meeting.  Ms. Witt acknowledged others who had 
collaborated on the project, including Dr. Bonita Bloodworth, Kaye Hirst, Chad 
Lappish, Jason Parks and Fran Burney.   
 
On behalf of the NCACC, Mr. Wooters presented Chairman Chamberlain with a 
framed plaque and he also presented Ms. Witt with a certificate to be given to Mr. 
Hall.  
 
Chairman Chamberlain said Rowan County was blessed to have such a 
wonderful library system.  Chairman Chamberlain called Library Services 
Director Phillip Barton forward and said that Mr. Barton was retiring after over 29 
years of service to Rowan County.  Chairman Chamberlain praised Mr. Barton 
and then read from a plaque, which he presented to Mr. Barton from the 
Commissioners.  A round of applause followed the presentation. 
 
Mr. Barton said he had been blessed with a fantastic place to call home as well 
as a job he had thoroughly enjoyed each day.  Mr. Barton praised the library staff 
and said he felt like he was leaving the organization in very capable hands.  Mr. 
Barton said he had appreciated the opportunity to serve the citizens and to be a 
part of Rowan County government. 
 
2a.  ADDITION.   
Resolution Regarding Public Comment Procedures 
Chairman Chamberlain presented the Board with a Resolution pertaining to 
Public Comment Procedures.  Chairman Chamberlain suggested that the Board 
place the Public Comment Period as agenda item #2 near the beginning of each 
Board meeting.     
 
By consensus, the Board approved the suggestion and Chairman Chamberlain 
said effective with the April 2, 2007 Commission Meeting, the Public Comment 
Period would be at the beginning of the meeting.  (The Board voted later in the 

 3



meeting during agenda item #20 to approve the Resolution regarding Public 
Comment Procedures).  
 
3.  PUBLIC HEARING FOR TAYLOR CLAY PRODUCTS, INC. INDUSTRIAL 
REVENUE BOND REFINANCING  
Attorney Robert Quick and Charles Taylor of Taylor Clay Products, Inc. were 
present to discuss the Taylor Clay Products, Inc. Industrial Revenue Bond 
Refinancing.  Mr. Quick explained that in 2006 the Board held a public hearing 
for the proposed industrial development revenue bonds for Taylor Clay Products, 
Inc.  Mr. Quick said that since that time, the company had decided as part of the 
new bond issue to also refund the existing Series 1999 Bonds and extend the 
maturity date of the bonds in order to decrease costs to the company.  Mr. Quick 
reported that the maturity date for the new bonds would be 2022.  Mr. Quick said 
to effect the changes, a second public hearing was required.   
 
Mr. Quick said he, along with Charles Taylor, were in attendance for the public 
hearing and he requested that upon completion of the public hearing, that the 
Board consider approving the Resolution giving final approval of the financing.  
Mr. Quick reported that if the Commissioners approved the request, the last step 
would be approval by the Local Government Commission in April. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input 
regarding the Taylor Clay Products, Inc. Industrial Revenue Bond Refinancing.   
 
With no one wishing to address the Board, Chairman Chamberlain closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved to approve the Resolution approving the issuance 
by the Rowan County Industrial Facilities and Pollution Control Financing 
Authority of its Industrial Development Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal 
amount of up to $11,900,000 to finance the costs of an industrial project for 
Taylor Clay Products, Inc. to refund certain existing bonds, and to refinance an 
existing term loan between Taylor Clay Products, Inc. and Wachovia Bank, 
National Association.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hall and 
carried unanimously. 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING FOR CONSIDERATION OF UNANIMOUS PETITION 
FOR HAT CREEK ROAD  
Fredda Greer of the Rowan County Planning and Development Department 
reported that when a request for a third structure address was made, it was 
noted that the road required a name.  Ms. Greer said the road is currently 
unnamed and is located west off the 1000 block of Chandler Road.  Ms. Greer 
said the property owner had submitted a completed application for the road name 
of Hat Creek Road.  Staff recommended approval. 
 

 4



Chairman Chamberlain opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input 
regarding the proposed road name of Hat Creek Road. 
 
With no one wishing to address the Board, Chairman Chamberlain closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved, Commissioner Barber seconded and the vote to 
approve the road name of Hat Creek Road passed unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARING FOR STA 02-06 MAINTENANCE OF SUBDIVISION 
STREETS  
Shane Stewart, Senior Planner from the Rowan County Planning and 
Development Department recalled that the Board met on February 19, 2007 and 
voted to conduct a public hearing regarding proposed changes for maintenance 
of subdivision streets.  The Board also requested additional information from 
Staff.   
 
Mr. Stewart reported that Staff did inform the Salisbury Rowan Home Builders of 
the public hearing, as well as other individuals that were interested in the 
process. 
 
Mr. Stewart recalled that one question raised in the previous meeting was the 
number of existing private roads in the County.  Mr. Stewart said there are 
approximately 1200 “named” roads that are not maintained by either a 
municipality or the State.   
 
Mr. Stewart said a Commissioner had questioned Staff regarding bus 
transportation.  Mr. Stewart said he had contacted transportation staff with 
Rowan-Salisbury Schools and he said bus transportation typically would not 
enter government maintained streets less than ½ mile in length for middle and 
high school students and 1/3 mile for elementary students.  Mr. Stewart said 
other factors involved included the number of students on streets and safety at 
bus stop intersections.  Mr. Stewart said the busses are not required to enter a 
private road unless some of these standards come into play.   
   
Mr. Stewart highlighted the current ordinance standards and maintenance 
agreements as listed in the agenda packets.  Mr. Stewart reviewed Attachment 
A, which was a synopsis of the information collected from various counties and 
how those counties addressed maintenance of subdivision streets.  
 
Mr. Stewart discussed the options for the Board’s consideration as follows: 
Option 1:  Rowan County will hold the developer responsible. 

• Revise ordinance to determine when a default in maintenance has 
occurred.  

• Violations of maintenance standards are subject to the same civil 
penalties as all other violations of the ordinance. 

 5



Option 2:  Note on the face of all subdivisions with new streets that include the 
following language: 

• Streets and storm drainage network were constructed to NCDOT 
standards. 

• Developer is responsible for maintenance. 
• Enforcement of maintenance certificate is a civil matter between lot 

owners and developer. 
• Rowan County is not responsible for maintaining these improvements. 

 
Option 3:  Allow Committee B to continue study of maintenance guarantee text 
and provide recommendation for incorporation. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell asked how much Staff time would be involved for Option 
1?  Mr. Stewart said if the subdivision were new, there would be a lot more Staff 
and County Attorney time involved, and that the same would apply to Option 3.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input 
regarding the proposed changes for maintenance of subdivision streets. 
 
With no one wishing to address the Board, Chairman Chamberlain closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell stated his preference for Option 2.  Commissioners 
Barber, Hall and Sides concurred with Commissioner Mitchell. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved to accept Option 2 and to turn the text back over to 
the Planning Board for consideration of a future text amendment.  Commissioner 
Barber seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
6.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER FOR ELIZABETH DUNCAN 
KOONTZ ELEMENTARY SCHOOL  
Jim Christy, Assistant Superintendent with Rowan-Salisbury Schools, reported 
that the Board of Education was recommending approval of a change order to 
increase the contract with Monteith Construction Corporation by $20,121.18.  Mr. 
Christy said the change order was required as a result from changes mandated 
by the Department of Insurance.  Mr. Christy said approval of the change order 
would close out the contract with the General Contractor.  Mr. Christy 
recommended that funds be paid from the project budget, which still had 
approximately $58,000 left.  Mr. Christy said $297,000 in contingency funds 
would still be left in place.   
 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Mitchell seconded and the vote to 
approve the request as submitted passed unanimously. 
 
 
 

 6



 
7.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION DECLARING (20) IVOTRONIC 
VOTING MACHINES & RELATED SUPPLIES AS SURPLUS  
Sandy Fisher of the Rowan County Finance Department and Board of Elections 
Director Nancy Evans presented a request asking the Commissioners to surplus 
twenty (20) Ivotronic voting machines and related supplies, and approval to sell 
the items for a price of $67,868.  Ms. Fisher explained that since the equipment 
and supplies were originally purchased with federal funds, the monies received 
from the sale would be deposited with the State Board of Elections for future 
Rowan County purchases of equipment. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved, Commissioner Barber seconded and the vote to 
approve the surplus of the equipment passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved approval of the Resolution authorizing the sale of 
the surplus equipment.  Commissioner Barber seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
8.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR 
PURCHASE OF (2) AMBULANCES AND APPROVAL TO SURPLUS (2) 
AMBULANCES FOR TRADE-IN  
Sandy Fisher of the Rowan County Finance Department and Emergency 
Services Director Frank Thomason presented a request for approval to award a 
contract for the purchase of 2 ambulances and approval to surplus 2 ambulances 
for trade-in.  Ms. Fisher said bids had been received for the purchase of (2) 2008 
Ford F450 Type I ambulances.  The Finance and Emergency Services 
Departments requested that the Board adopt a Resolution declaring:  a) surplus 
of (2) Ford E450 ambulances for trade-in, and b) approve the low bid of $99,619 
per ambulance received from Southeastern Specialty Vehicles, Inc. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Hall seconded and the vote to 
approve the Resolution awarding the contract for purchase of (2) Type I 
ambulances passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Sides moved approval for the surplus of the (2) Ford E450 
ambulances.  Commissioner Hall seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ALCOA POWER GENERATING INC. (APGI) 
RELICENSING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT (RSA)  
Greg Greene of the Rowan County Environmental Services Department said the 
Re-Licensing Settlement Agreement (RSA) for Yadkin Hydro Electric Project 
represented 4 years of studies and negotiations. Mr. Green recalled that in the 
spring of 2006, Staff had been directed by the Commissioners to focus on 3 
different areas, 1) water levels at High Rock Lake, 2) recreational access, and 3) 
sedimentation and flooding as it related to the City of Salisbury.  Mr. Green said 
the RSA addressed the water levels and recreational access issues, however the 

 7



sedimentation issued had not been resolved in this portion of the re-licensing 
process.  Mr. Green said several aspects of the agreement would have a direct 
impact on citizens as they utilize High Rock Lake and the other lakes in the 
Yadkin system.  Mr. Green highlighted several of the benefits of the package 
including: 

• The recreation season for High Rock Lake had been extended by (3) 
months, and under normal conditions would be no lower than 4’ below full 
in the recreation season and no lower than 10’ in the winter;  

• APGI to donate the 63-acre Eagle Pointe Nature Preserve to Rowan 
County; and  

• APGI to construct a public swimming/and recreation access area on the 
Rowan County side of High Rock Lake.   

 
Mr. Green said by signing the RSA, Rowan County would be agreeing to support 
ALCOA’s efforts to secure a new license to operate. 
 
Commissioner Barber reported that he and County Attorney Jay Dees, along with 
Mr. Green, had met with Gene Ellis from ALCOA to discuss the RSA.  
Commissioner Barber felt the RSA was a good deal for the County.  
Commissioner Barber said in looking at the license, the earliest for the transfer of 
the 63 acres at Eagle Pointe Nature Preserve was in a 3-year period.  
Commissioner Barber added that the recreational area should be complete in a 
10-year period.  Commissioner Barber said that economic development would be 
helped through the agreement.  Commissioner Barber expressed concern that 
the RSA was silent on the issue of Salisbury’s concerns.  Commissioner Barber 
said Salisbury’s concerns were legitimate and would affect the citizens and 
businesses who are also Rowan County taxpayers.  Commissioner Barber said 
in the event of a flood, there could be serious issues in the water supply coming 
from Salisbury.   
 
Commissioner Mitchell said the inclusion of the lake levels had been a big issue 
for the residents.  Commissioner Mitchell said the other issue receiving the most 
attention was the location of the recreation facility.   
 
Commissioner Sides said he was prepared to vote to sign the agreement.   
 
Commissioner Hall asked if there would be adverse affects to the City of 
Salisbury if the County signed the agreement.  Mr. Dees responded that this 
issue had been specifically addressed with Mr. Ellis.  Mr. Dees said the RSA did 
not reference the sedimentation issue at all and the County is required to only 
support the items listed in the RSA.  Mr. Dees said the County could support 
Salisbury without putting the RSA at risk, which would be consistent with the 
Board’s previous action. 
 
Commissioner Barber suggested that the Board allow the Chairman to select at 
least one Commissioner, along with the County Manager, County Attorney and 

 8



Mr. Green to meet with City representatives and report back to the Board as to 
what support the County might provide concerning the sedimentation issue.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain appointed Commissioner Barber, Mr. Cowan and Mr. 
Dees to meet with City representatives. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved approval of the signing of the RSA.  Commissioner 
Barber seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Green described the re-licensing process as extraordinary.  Mr. Green 
acknowledged Larry Jones of the High Rock Lake Association for his affect in the 
process and for his representation of the citizens.  Mr. Green expressed his 
gratitude for Mr. Jones’ endless dedication as a volunteer.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain also recognized and thanked Mr. Jones, as well as Mr. 
Green and Environmental Management Director Kathryn Jolly for keeping the 
Board informed throughout the re-licensing process.  
 
Commissioner Sides moved to appoint the sitting County Manager as the contact 
for Rowan County in the RSA.  Commissioner Hall seconded and the motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
10. CONSIDER PRIVATE ROAD APPROVAL FOR ARMISTEAD 
SUBDIVISION  
Shane Stewart, Senior Planner from the Rowan County Planning & Development 
Department said as required by the Subdivision Ordinance, the Board of 
Commissioners must approve requests for private road subdivisions.  Mr. 
Stewart said the applicant, Phillip Tilley, was requesting approval of Armistead 
Road off Phaniel Church Road.  The road is the only new road into a new 
subdivision and would provide access to approximately 10 single-family homes. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Mitchell seconded and the vote to 
approve the private road for Armistead Subdivision passed unanimously. 
 
11.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION & APPOINTMENT OF POOL 
OF APPLICANTS TO SERVE ON THE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND 
REVIEW  
County Assessor Jerry Rowland and staff member Barbara McGuire were 
present to answer any questions the Board might have regarding the 
appointment of the applicants to serve on the Board of Equalization and Review 
(BER). 
 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Hall seconded and the vote to 
approve the modified Resolution and the pool of applicants passed unanimously. 
 
 

 9



12.  CONSIDER PROPOSAL FROM BENCHMARK CMR, INC. REGARDING 
PLANNING SERVICES  
Planning and Development Director Ed Muire and Ron Smith from Benchmark 
CMR, Inc. discussed the area plan scope of services from Benchmark.  
 
Mr. Muire said at the 2007 planning retreat, the Board had directed Staff to 
contact Benchmark for a proposal for planning services related to the 
development of a Land Use Plan (LUP) for the south and west portions of Rowan 
County.  Mr. Muire said the map in the agenda packets shows the entire county 
and he provided a power point presentation to point out the district lines for the 
south and west high schools.   
 
Mr. Muire discussed the information considered by Staff in determining 
boundaries for the west and south area plan. Mr. Muire also discussed permit 
activity. 
 
Mr. Smith provided background history regarding Benchmark and said the firm 
currently provided services to many of the County’s municipalities.  Mr. Smith 
said the firm was familiar with Rowan County and what had been taking place, 
including with the governing Boards. 
 
Mr. Smith discussed the scope for the project and proposed that the Board 
appoint a steering committee comprised of a member of the Planning Board and 
people with an interest, or who reside in the study areas.  Mr. Smith said the 
team would compile information about the area, and the information along with 
public input would be the foundation for the recommendations/implementations.  
Mr. Smith anticipated that there should be 3 or 4 public meetings to request 
comments from the public on what had been done and what they saw for their 
particular area. 
 
Mr. Smith said once the input has been received, it would be up to the steering 
committee, Planning Staff and Benchmark Staff to incorporate the information 
into the plan that would again be taken to the public.  Mr. Smith said once the 
“foundation has been laid,” the information would go before the Planning Board 
for a recommendation to the Commissioners.   
 
Mr. Smith said the Board would be provided with project updates and would also 
be kept informed via email.  Mr. Smith said there would be surveys that would be 
used on Benchmark’s and the County’s websites as another avenue for public 
input.   
 
Mr. Smith estimated the process would take 6 to 8 months but he pointed out that 
the process could take longer if the Planning Board and the Commissioners did 
not agree.  Mr. Smith said a LUP map would have specific recommendations for 
future land uses, would address ordinance changes, transportation and any other 

 10



issues to go along with the future growth of Rowan County for the next 10 to 20 
years.   
 
Commissioner Barber referred to transportation infrastructure and asked how the 
County would map what the DOT was planning to a potential LUP.  Mr. Smith 
was of the opinion that transportation plans were “priority one.”  Mr. Smith said 
the projects should be listed on the map but that projects on the list that were “far 
out” in the future should not be included.  
 
Commissioner Barber stated that if the Board chose to move forward with the 
LUP, it was critical to have citizen involvement.  Mr. Smith said it was necessary 
to notify as many citizens as possible to make sure they were aware the land use 
planning process was going on.  Mr. Smith said it was important to keep the 
process unbiased and with no preconceived notions.  
 
Commissioner Mitchell asked how Staff would deal with a large number of people 
who want one use for large tracts of land when the property owners of the tracts 
might want something different.  Mr. Muire said the properties were not being 
rezoned.  Mr. Muire said the LUP is a policy recommendation with hopes that it 
would be a guide for the Commissioners if the owner wanted to sell or develop 
the property in future.  Mr. Muire said in looking at the tracts for potential 
development, notices should be mailed to those property owners for their input. 
 
Mr. Smith said when groups are going in different directions in the land use 
process, there must be compromise, which in most cases preference goes 
towards the landowner.  Mr. Smith said at the same time, consideration must be 
given to what is best for the County as a whole.  Mr. Smith said the steering 
committee was very important in helping to solve these types of issues.  Mr. 
Smith said there is the opportunity to make changes as approval of the LUP 
ultimately goes through the Planning Board and Commissioners.     
 
Chairman Chamberlain said that he agreed with the boundaries described by Mr. 
Muire.  Chairman Chamberlain said the steering committee should be appointed 
quickly and he also emphasized that the LUP must be very basic.  Chairman 
Chamberlain said there would be problems if he detected that the LUP was not 
unbiased.   
 
Commissioner Sides said he was not on the Board when countywide zoning was 
implemented.  Commissioner Sides said he believed that when zoning was 
established, the County had to do a LUP and consider each parcel to create a 
map for the type of growth wanted.  Commissioner Sides stated that what he felt 
was being said today is, “we have problems with the existing zoning because it 
doesn’t closely enough control the property in the County.”  Commissioner Sides 
said he was convinced that the only reason for a LUP was to increase control of 
property and that he would not vote for a LUP. 
 

 11



Commissioner Hall said she understood that Staff would work with the citizens 
during the LUP process to develop a blueprint for the potential of property in 
Rowan County and what the County would look like in the future.  Commissioner 
Hall said she also understood the LUP would be a set of guidelines and “not set 
in stone.”  Commissioner Hall said she had received numerous questions from 
citizens and that they did not want a set of regulations imposed on them dictating 
what they could or could not do with their property.   
 
Mr. Smith said a LUP is not a set of regulations but a plan, a guideline to help the 
Board make decisions on a monthly basis.  Mr. Smith said the LUP would help 
the development community, residents and anyone else looking to locate a 
business, asphalt plant, go-cart track or subdivision in Rowan County.  Mr. Smith 
said the LUP would not make the Board’s decisions but would provide guidance.  
Mr. Smith said the North Carolina General Statutes changed last year to “inch” 
towards encouraging communities to develop land use plans. 
 
Commissioner Hall asked how the steering committee would be set up and if the 
membership would consist of representation of different viewpoints.    Mr. Smith 
said it had been discussed to have representation from each of the “sub areas” 
within western Rowan. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain said the Commissioners would appoint the steering 
committee. 
 
Mr. Muire asked about opening up the process for the steering committee and 
allowing the Clerk to advertise for those interested in serving on the committee.  
Mr. Muire said it was critical to have good representation on the committee. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain suggested that Staff bring back names for potential 
membership for the steering committee for the first meeting in April.  Mr. Muire 
mentioned the agenda deadline for the April 2nd Commission Meeting and asked 
if it would be acceptable to submit the information via email and also at the 
meeting.  Chairman Chamberlain said this was acceptable to him. 
 
Commissioner Sides stated that the Board was basically regulating growth with 
the taxpayers’ money each time it cooperated with Salisbury Rowan Utilities on a 
water/sewer project.  Commissioner Sides said because these utilities are “run 
through their backyard,” it forced some citizens to sell their property and move.   
 
Commissioner Mitchell referred to the Statement of Reasonableness and 
Consistency and asked, “If a rezoning request comes before this Board that does 
not follow the LUP, how does one play out approving the rezoning request that 
doesn’t follow the plan?”  Mr. Muire responded that the statutes give the authority 
to the Board to make a decision that is not in keeping with the plan.  Mr. Muire 
said the Statement of Reasonableness and Consistency was not legally binding 
but rather a rationale as to why the Board made its decision.   

 12



County Attorney Jay Dees said there is no perfect zoning ordinance or 
comprehensive plan.  Mr. Dees said the LUP was designed to give the Board a 
frame of reference for a specific request, which may or may not fit with the plan.  
Mr. Dees said if a request is received that is inconsistent with the LUP and 
several years have passed since the LUP was approved, it might cause Staff to 
undertake a study for that area.  Mr. Dees said there was flexibility with the plan 
– that it was not meant to be the only frame of reference and that it would 
obviously change over time. 
 
Commissioner Barber moved to formally adopt the boundaries to be studied in 
the south and the west area plan.  Commissioner Hall seconded and the motion 
carried 4-1 with Commissioner Sides dissenting. 
 
Commissioner Barber moved to accept the contract and the scope of services 
with Benchmark, Inc.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hall. 
 
Commissioner Sides asked where the funds for the project would come from and 
Finance Director Leslie Heidrick said there were sufficient funds in the 
unrestricted fund balance. 
 
County Manager William Cowan said the information before the Board was not a 
contract but rather the framework for a contract.  Mr. Cowan said he would be 
more comfortable in having the information formulated into a contract and 
receiving more details as to what would be included in the costs.  Mr. Cowan 
suggested that the services be billed at an hourly rate, not to exceed a specific 
amount, with the delivery of a product within a certain period of time. 
 
At Chairman Chamberlain’s request, Commissioner Barber repeated the motion 
as follows:  To accept the contract as we know it today with some further 
discussion between the County Manager, County Attorney, and Benchmark, Inc. 
and the scope of services.      
 
Upon being put to a vote, the motion on the floor passed 4-1 with Commissioner 
Sides dissenting. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain stated that the Board had just accepted the proposed 
boundaries, and accepted Benchmark’s services, which would come back to the 
full Board in contractual form for approval.  
 
13.  DISCUSSION REGARDING FAIRGROUNDS PROPERTY  
Commissioner Hall provided a brief background regarding the original lease 
between the Rowan County Agricultural and Industrial Fair Association and 
Rowan County.  Commissioner Hall explained that the terms of the lease were 
for fifty (50) years for $1 per year.  Commissioner Hall said the purpose of the 
lease agreement was to encourage the agricultural and industrial development of 
Rowan County.  Commissioner Hall said in order to carry out the purpose, the 

 13



Lessee had agreed to put on a county agricultural and industrial fair at least once 
each year.  Commissioner Hall said the Lessee further agreed that the leased 
premises would “be used solely for the purpose of encouraging the agricultural 
and industrial development of Rowan County.” 
 
Commissioner Hall said in September of 2003 the Board of Commissioners had 
established the Rowan County Fairgrounds Study Committee realizing the 50-
year lease was about to expire.  Commissioner Hall said it was clearly stated in 
the mission of the Committee that: “With the current lease of county property to 
the Rowan County Fair Association set to expire on November 1, 2007, the 
Board of Commissioners does not plan to extend the lease at the current location 
on Julian Road.  The site has more value as a potential industrial, commercial 
site as opposed to an extension of the long-term lease for the fairgrounds.” 
 
Commissioner Hall said the Committee had reported back to the Commissioners 
on April 19, 2004 with 5 basic findings.  Commissioner Hall said the second 
finding appeared to be in conflict with the essence of the Committee’s mission 
and understanding that the current fairgrounds site will become 
industrial/commercial.  Commissioner Hall quoted, “There appears to be support 
by the Committee of leaving the County fairgrounds at its present location only if 
the fairgrounds facilities can be expanded in size and improved to attract more 
events and activities.” Commissioner Hall said, in other words leave the fair at its 
current location and expand, which is in clear conflict with what the Commission 
had expected.  Commissioner Hall said the third finding appears to directly 
challenge the current 50-year lease and its purpose of providing an agricultural 
and industrial fair for citizens.  Commissioner Hall quoted from the study, “Rowan 
County currently has no authority or discretion over the types, quality, or number 
of activities that are hosted at the Rowan County Fairgrounds.”  Commissioner 
Hall said under the 50-year lease agreement, the Fair Association retained 
control over the grounds and facilities with only one primary requirement:  an 
annual fair will be held.  All other events and activities are booked, priced and 
coordinated by the Fair Association.  Commissioner Hall said the Fair 
Association retains all proceeds.   
 
Commissioner Hall said she had discerned that there is a great divide of 
misunderstanding between the County and the Fair Association as to both the 
purpose and the future of the fairgrounds.  Commissioner Hall said she 
supported the original intent of Rowan County Government in helping to start an 
agricultural and industrial fair.  Commissioner Hall said the lease clearly states 
the property is to be used solely for the purpose of encouraging the agricultural 
and industrial development of Rowan County.  Commissioner Hall said she 
believed the Fair Association had violated the lease agreement by sponsoring at 
least one event that is of no semblance of a relationship to the 
agricultural/industrial development of Rowan County.  Commissioner Hall said 
she was referring to the “Smoke Out,” which she compared to a “beer fest and 
skin buffet” and not type of event that should be held on Rowan County-owned 

 14



property.  Commissioner Hall said she would not support this type of activity on 
county-owned property and that she would not support signing a lease with any 
organization that is not family-friendly.  Commissioner Hall said she felt that 
Rowan County should open up the process of who runs the fair and the 
fairgrounds at its present location after the current 50-year lease expires.  
Commissioner Hall said she was in no hurry to sell the fairgrounds property but 
that realistically at some point in the future there would be a match between the 
highest and best use of the property, with a buyer willing to pay the County top 
dollar.  Commissioner Hall said County Commissioners realize the need for 
growth in the tax base but more importantly the citizens need jobs.  
Commissioner Hall felt that a new and vibrant commercial area in close proximity 
to I-85 could do both. 
 
Commissioner Hall moved to replace the current ordinance concerning 
consumption of alcohol on county owned property.  Commissioner Hall read the 
current ordinance text as follows:  “The consumption of malt beverages and 
unfortified wines on property owned, leased or occupied by the County is 
prohibited unless otherwise granted approval by making application through the 
County Manager’s Office.”  Commissioner Hall said she would like the text 
replaced with, and she moved, “that we instruct our Attorney to work with Staff in 
order to develop an ordinance prohibiting the possession, sale or consumption of 
alcoholic beverages on public property owned by Rowan County.”  
Commissioner Hall further stated, “because of joint ownership with the City of 
Kannapolis, this motion specifically exempts Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium.”     
 
Commissioner Sides requested clarification and asked if the motion was to send 
the text to Staff for development of a change to the ordinance or if it was to 
change the ordinance.  Commissioner Sides pointed out that a change to the 
existing ordinance would require holding a public hearing.   
 
County Attorney Jay Dees said the changes would be a text amendment.   
 
Commissioner Sides said if the ordinance was being changed, the motion did not 
need to include the stadium because the ordinance allowed them to be exempt if 
the Board desired.  Commissioner Sides said the ordinance “should read pretty 
much as it does.” 
 
Commissioner Hall said the current ordinance just says “consumption” and didn’t 
deal with possession or sale.  Commissioner Sides said he would agree with 
incorporating the change into the ordinance.   
 
Commissioner Hall said she would amend the motion and strike Fieldcrest 
Cannon Stadium. 
 
Commissioner Sides said the Board needed to schedule a public hearing 
regarding the text amendment. 

 15



Mr. Dees said he would bring back the proposed text and also address the 
interplay of property owned by the County that is located in another jurisdiction. 
 
Commissioner Sides seconded the motion and upon being put to a vote, the 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved to set a public hearing for the next Commission 
meeting when the text is presented.  Commissioner Hall seconded and the 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Hall mentioned the inappropriateness of activities at “Smoke Out” 
and said she had printed pictures from the Internet regarding the event.  
Commissioner Hall said the pictures were in an envelope because they were 
inappropriate to show in public.  Commissioner Hall said she would share the 
pictures with the press and anyone who might care to see what types of activities 
are taking place on county-owned property.   
 
Commissioner Mitchell said there obviously needs to be some discussion 
regarding the events that are held at the fairgrounds.  Commissioner Mitchell 
said if these events are going to occur on county-owned property, the County 
must come to an agreement with the Fair Association as to what kind of events 
are taking place on the property.  Commissioner Mitchell said he believed that 
the positive the Fair Association brings to Rowan County far outweighs the 
negatives.  Commissioner Mitchell said he personally was not “shopping” for a 
new group to run the fair.  Commissioner Mitchell said he believed that the fair 
needed to be re-located because the land where it is located is more valuable for 
another purpose.  Commissioner Mitchell said the county subsidizes uses “all the 
time” and that he had no problem with a “good use” and subsidizing that use.  
Commissioner Mitchell said he didn’t feel there was a potential buyer salivating to 
purchase the land.  Commissioner Mitchell referred to a letter the Board had 
received prior to the meeting and said that he hoped the Fair Association would 
have the necessary time to find an adequate location.  Commissioner Mitchell 
said he hoped to see the Fair Association continue to run the fair.  Commissioner 
Mitchell said the study group was overwhelming in their opinion that the County 
should have a fair.  Commissioner Mitchell said   transportation issues plague the 
fair but he said he felt the same transportation issues would apply to commercial 
development on the site.  Commissioner Mitchell said the Board should make 
sure that the fair continues - maybe not all of the events – and that the Board 
should do everything in its power to make sure the County had an annual fair.  
Commissioner Mitchell said he would rather the fair not have to skip a year 
“except under the most bleak of circumstances.”   
 
Commissioner Barber concurred with Commissioner Mitchell and said he would 
like to see the current Fair Association continue to manage the agricultural and 
industrial fair.  Commissioner Barber said he understood the arguments 
concerning the highest and best use for the property.  Commissioner Barber said 

 16



the Board had discussed helping to find another site for the fair.  Commissioner 
Barber asked if the Board wanted to own the property for the County Fair 
because the question pertaining to highest and best use would certainly surface 
again.  Commissioner Barber said he would like to see a contract extension that 
was fair to everyone.  Commissioner Barber said agriculture was the heritage of 
Rowan County and that he was of the opinion that agriculture would be even 
more important going forward.  Commissioner Barber said he would like to see a 
successful compromise and he expressed hope that the resolution would be 
“even better than what we have today in terms of an agricultural fair.” 
 
Chairman Chamberlain said someone had commented that every time the fair 
moves, it gets better.  Chairman Chamberlain said based on the Board’s 
discussion, it is not the responsibility of Rowan County Government to provide 
land for a county fair.  Chairman Chamberlain said the Board had taken an oath 
“to do the right thing” and use property for its highest and best use.  Chairman 
Chamberlain said the highest and best use for the property was no longer for a 
fair.  Chairman Chamberlain said he felt the Board would receive an offer “soon” 
for the property.  Chairman Chamberlain said there had been many reasons 
stated as to why the County Fair should be held on private property if at all 
possible.  Chairman Chamberlain said he did not know if the County could 
possibly come to an agreement to help but that he did not want the fair to go out 
of business.  Chairman Chamberlain said there would be no long-term lease to 
the Rowan County Fair Association or anyone else on the current fairgrounds 
property.  Chairman Chamberlain said the fair should be relocated and he 
commented that he would never vote for Rowan County Government to run the 
fair.  Chairman Chamberlain commended the Fair Association for sending the 
letter that had been distributed to the Commissioners prior to the meeting.  
Chairman Chamberlain said the letter, in essence, stated that the Fair 
Association had met and appointed a committee to search for land to hold the 
fair.   
 
Commissioner Sides said he wanted everyone to understand that he was not 
against the fair.  Commissioner Sides said he was against some of the activities 
that take place on County property.  Commissioner Sides referred to a letter he 
had received from an individual and said he supported the types of activities 
listed in the letter.  Commissioner Sides said the County had “allowed some 
things to go astray; we need to get them straight.”  Commissioner Sides then 
read from an email he had previously sent to the Board members.  The email 
stated that Commissioner Sides would “like to see the lease extended on the 
Julian Road property on a year-to-year basis.  If the Fair Association is interested 
in this arrangement, we should begin immediately drafting a new lease 
agreement” and “we should specifically address purposes and activities for which 
the property could be subleased.”  Commissioner Sides said the public needed to 
realize what a major contribution Rowan County had made to the fair by allowing 
a prime piece of real estate to be available for $1 per year.  Commissioner Sides 
said the County should formally and publicly encourage the Fair Association to 

 17



begin looking for other property for their future endeavors, as the Julian Road 
property was too valuable to continue with the current use.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain said the Board wanted “Smoke Out gone.”  Chairman 
Chamberlain said if the “Smoke Out” event was held this year, the Board, to the 
extent of its authority would allow no alcohol.   
 
14.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PLANS TO RENOVATE THIRD FLOOR OF 
THE JUSTICE CENTER 
Commissioner Sides said that due to additional space being needed in the justice 
center, several individuals had been appointed by Chairman Chamberlain to find 
an alternate means for the justice system to hold court proceedings.  
Commissioner Sides said the group was proposing a short-term resolution 
through renovations that would provide 2 additional courtrooms as well as jury 
rooms and offices for the judges.  Commissioner Sides said the renovations 
would take approximately 18 months to complete and that the Board should 
consider undertaking the project as soon as possible.    
 
Commissioner Sides suggested allowing Staff to proceed with the plan, with the 
funding for the project to take place in the 2007-08 budget.  Commissioner Sides 
said if any funds were currently needed, they could be used from the County’s 
surplus and replaced in 2007-08.  Commissioner Sides reported the estimated 
costs at $1.3 million and he said the Board could determine how it would fund the 
project during budget work sessions. 
 
County Manager William Cowan referred to the Board’s retreat and said the 
Board had discussed completing the entire floor.  Mr. Cowan said closing in the 
evidence room for the Sheriff’s Department added an additional $240,000 to 
$300,000.  Mr. Cowan said the approximate cost of the project was $1.7 million.   
 
Commissioner Sides moved to allow Staff to proceed with the architect and the 
necessary details to get the project underway.  Commissioner Hall seconded the 
motion. 
 
Upon being put to a vote, the motion passed unanimously. 
 
15.  CONSIDER NEW POSITION FOR A DEPUTY TAX COLLECTOR 
Director of Administration Ken Deal reported that the Personnel Board had met 
on February 20, 2007 and considered a request for a new position for a Deputy 
Tax Collector.  Mr. Deal explained the need for the position and said the 
Personnel Board had recommended creating the position as a Grade 22 with a 
maximum salary of $44,016. 
 
The Board briefly discussed the position and the handling of in rem foreclosures.  
The Board felt that the position would pay for itself. 
 

 18



Commissioner Sides moved for approval of the new position for a Deputy Tax 
Collector.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Barber and passed 
unanimously. 
 
16.  CONSIDER OFFER TO PURCHASE PROPERTY AT 915 NORTH MAIN 
STREET IN KANNAPOLIS (FORMER SHERIFF’S OFFICE)  
County Manager William Cowan reported that the County had received an offer 
in the amount of $50,000 from Brian Johnson for the purchase of county-owned 
property located at 915 North Main Street in Kannapolis.  Mr. Cowan said that 
he, along with County Attorney Jay Dees recommended that the Board accept 
the offer. Mr. Cowan said the County would obtain a 5% deposit, advertise the 
offer and go through the upset bid process.  Mr. Cowan said after the 10-day 
upset bid process was complete, the issue would come back for the Board’s 
consideration as to whether to accept the offer.  Mr. Cowan said he had 
discussed the assessed value of the property with County Assessor Jerry 
Rowland, and Mr. Rowland had suggested that the Board accept the offer. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved to declare the property as surplus.  Commissioner 
Mitchell seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Sides moved that the Board propose to accept the offer from Mr. 
Johnson, obtain a deposit and advertise for upset bid.  The motion was seconded 
by Commissioner Mitchell and passed unanimously. 
 
17.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENTS  
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Barber seconded and the vote to 
approve the budget amendments as presented passed unanimously. 
 
18.  CONSIDER BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
(At this point, the Board discussed item #19 before considering the Board 
Appointments.) 
 
ADULT CARE HOME ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Lillie Nelson and Ruby Parris submitted applications for reappointment.  Both 
have served 3 (2) year terms, completing their allowable terms of service. In 
order for them to be reappointed, the Board would need to waive the term limits 
in the Resolution adopted by the Board in 1999.  The terms of appointment would 
be effective March 1, 2007 and expire February 28, 2010. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved to waive the Resolution regarding the term limits 
adopted by the Board in 1999.  Commissioner Sides seconded and the motion 
passed unanimously.   
 
Eldred Wilson and Kate Petherick also submitted applications for appointment. 
The terms would be for 1 year beginning on March 1, 2007 and expire on 
February 29, 2008. 

 19



Commissioner Mitchell nominated Lillie Nelson, Ruby Parris, Eldred Wilson and 
Kate Petherick.  The nomination passed unanimously. 
 
NURSING HOME ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Mary Hartley submitted an application for reappointment.  Ms. Hartley was 
eligible for reappointment for a 3-year term beginning March 1, 2007 and expiring 
on February 28, 2010.  
 
Lena Sellars-Crook submitted an application.  The term dates would be effective 
March 1, 2007 and expire on February 29, 2008.  
 
Commissioner Sides moved approval of Mary Hartley and Lena Sellars-Crook.  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES AND POLLUTION CONTROL FINANCE 
AUTHORITY 
Bob Setzer submitted an application for reappointment.  The terms of the 
appointment would expire on February 28, 2013.  
 
Commissioner Mitchell nominated Bob Setzer and the nomination passed 
unanimously.  
 
PIEDMONT BEHAVIORAL HEALTH BOARD 
William (Bill) Burgin submitted an application to fill the vacancy of David Joslin. 
The term would expire on June 30, 2007. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved for approval of Bill Burgin and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
  
SALISBURY-ROWAN COMMUNITY SERVICE COUNCIL 
Milton Taylor submitted an application for reappointment.  The term dates were 
effective for March 1, 2007, expiring on February 28, 2009.  
 
Commissioner Mitchell nominated Milton Taylor.  The nomination carried 
unanimously. 
 
SCOTCH-IRISH VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT 
The Scotch-Irish VFD requested the appointment of 3 Fire Commissioners and 
submitted the following applicants for consideration:  
 
Clyde Lippard 
H.T. Hall 
Fred McDaniel  
  
The terms would be for 2 years, expiring on February 28, 2009. 
 

 20



Chairman Chamberlain explained that the Board typically liked to receive more 
suggested appointees than there are appointments to be made, however in this 
case only 3 applications were submitted. 
 
Commissioner Barber nominated Clyde Lippard, H.T. Hall and Fred McDaniel.  
The nomination passed unanimously. 
 
BOSTIAN HEIGHTS VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT 
The Bostian Heights VFD requested the appointment of 3 Fire Commissioners 
and submitted the following applicants for consideration:   
 
Carlos Henley 
Dennis Barger 
M.D. Ford 
Nelson Barbee 
Chris Euart 
 
The terms would be for 2 years, expiring on December 31, 2008. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell nominated Dennis Barger and the nomination passed 
unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Barber nominated Carlos Henley and the nomination passed 
unanimously.   
 
Commissioner Barber nominated M.D. Ford and the nomination carried 
unanimously. 
 
19.  COUNTY MANAGER’S MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
County Manager William Cowan highlighted the various portions of the Activity 
Report and also briefly mentioned several issues: 
 

• Floor and site plans for the new EMS station  
• Consideration for purchasing copies as opposed to buying copy 

equipment 
• An offer in the amount of $9,994.50 for a wrecked Senior Services van  
• Department of Social Services space study is underway with ADW 

Architecture.  Mr. Cowan said the services for the space study would not 
exceed $2500 and that he would bring the information back to the Board 
for direction. 

• The executed stadium agreement discussed at the Board’s Planning 
Retreat had been delivered to the City of Kannapolis.  Mr. Cowan said the 
County was waiting for the City’s approval.  Mr. Cowan said the 
Kannapolis City Manager had indicated in an email that their City Attorney 
had some adjustments to make to the agreement. 

 21



• Mr. Cowan said the City had provided the attachment regarding the report 
on the Town Creek Sewer Project. 

 
Commissioner Sides referred to the solid waste disposal and recycling activity 
listed in the report.  Commissioner Sides pointed out that 12,000 tons were 
landfilled while 152 tons were recycled.    
 
In response to a query from Commissioner Sides regarding ambulance billing, 
Finance Director Leslie Heidrick said the County does not collect a large portion 
of the charges.  Ms. Heidrick said the majority of the revenues were Medicare.  
Ms. Heidrick said the County maximizes the Medicaid money and on a $300 
charge, the County collects approximately $65.00, with the rest being written off.  
Ms. Heidrick explained that Medicare compensates the County for 80% of a bill 
and the County attempts to collect the remaining 20% from the individuals.  Ms. 
Heidrick said the Finance Department is currently working on a formal collection 
policy to be presented to the Board for adoption.  
 
(At this point in the meeting, Chairman Chamberlain asked the Board to consider 
the Board appointments, agenda item #18.)  
 
20.  PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  
Chairman Chamberlain opened the Public Comment Period to entertain 
comments from any citizens that might wish to address the Board. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain reminded everyone of the Board’s earlier changes 
regarding the Public Comment Period and he stated that in the future, in order for 
citizens to address the Board during the Public Comment Period, speakers must 
sign in.  
 
The following citizens addressed the Board: 
 

• Jody Everhart referred to the letter from the Fair Association that had 
been distributed to the Board prior to the meeting.  Mr. Everhart said he 
had emailed the Commissioners and County Manager late the previous 
afternoon late yesterday about the committee referenced in the letter.  Mr. 
Everhart said the Fair Association had been looking for a new site to hold 
the fair with the assistance of realtors and farmers.  Mr. Everhart said 
they were seeking approximately 40 to 70 acres.  Mr. Everhart said 
perhaps the County could assist in finding out who owns the larger tracts 
in certain locations that the Fair Association could afford.  Mr. Everhart 
said the Fair Association wanted to move through a smooth transition.   

 
Mr. Everhart referred to the activities that had been raised earlier in the 
meeting by Commissioner Hall.  Mr. Everhart said the activity had been 
“taken through the County Manager and through the previous Board.”  Mr. 
Everhart said the Fair Association had a contract with “Smoke Out” 

 22



through this year.  Mr. Everhart asked if he was supposed to tell the 
“Smoke Out” group that there would be no alcohol at their event?  Mr. 
Everhart said once this is done, there would be a lawsuit and he asked, “Is 
it going to be between us as a Fair Association” after we were told “we 
could do it at the time the contract was signed” by the County Manager? 
 
Chairman Chamberlain said the Board should have asked the Fair 
Association to provide documentation showing that permission had been 
granted to sell alcohol on the premises; he added that if the document 
existed, the Board would like to see it.  Chairman Chamberlain said in his 
opinion and as far as he was concerned, he expected the Fair Association 
to contact the “Smoke Out” group and inform them that there would be no 
alcohol at their event this year.  Chairman Chamberlain then asked the 
Board to add their comments. 
 
Commissioner Sides said the contract the Fair Association has with the 
“Smoke Out” group states that the sell or consumption of alcohol for the 
event is entirely up to the Fair Association.  Commissioner Sides said, 
“The contract doesn’t guarantee there will be.”  Commissioner Sides said, 
“You say they can’t sell it; they’ve got to buy it from you.”  Commissioner 
Sides said you don’t have the authority to exercise that without a signed 
document showing that authority, “so we’re saying, no alcohol.”  
Commissioner Sides said, “We’re saying you can honor your contract – 
you can have the “Smoke Out” – but you can’t sell alcohol.” 
 
Chairman Chamberlain encouraged Mr. Everhart to look at the pictures 
that Commissioner Hall had mentioned earlier.   

 
• Jack Fisher said when someone says a Land Use Plan (LUP) is just an 

outline, “there’s something wrong with it.”  Mr. Fisher said a LUP is 
another way of zoning and he said the Board was taking property rights 
away from people with a LUP.  Mr. Fisher said the County should zone I-
85 as Industrial from north to south.  Mr. Fisher said he agreed with 
Commissioner Sides that people are being forced to sell out when the 
Board approves water/sewer line extensions.  Mr. Fisher said he would 
like to serve on the LUP committee.     

 
Chairman Chamberlain asked Mr. Fisher if he could serve on the LUP 
committee and remain unbiased.  Mr. Fisher responded yes. 
 

• Phyllis Sides informed the Board that it was difficult for those in the 
audience to hear the Board.  Ms. Sides asked the Board members to 
remember to speak directly into the microphones. 

 

 23



 24

Chairman Chamberlain informed Ms. Sides that the Board was looking 
into updating the meeting chambers and that the audio issues would be 
addressed. 

 
With no further citizen input Chairman Chamberlain closed the Public Comment 
Period. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the floor to entertain a motion regarding a 
Resolution for Public Comment Procedures. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Barber seconded and the vote to 
adopt the Resolution passed unanimously.  
 
21.  ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business to come before the Board, Commissioner Sides moved, 
Commissioner Barber seconded and the vote to adjourn the meeting at 8:42 pm 
passed unanimously.    

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 

    Carolyn Athey 
     Clerk to the Board 


